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ST. FRANCIS XAVIER ROMAN CATHOLIC
CHURCH AT NEWTOWN MANOR
Compton 1766

This small brick church was erected in 1766 with
later brick additions to each end completed in 1767.
The confessional was added in 1816.

Also see archeological listingf’“

This property has been included on e National
Regis &1 0§ His drnic Places, U.S. Deparitmen fof the
In 2rion.
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Form 10-300 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE:
' (July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Maryland
COUNTY:
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES St. Marv's
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM FOR NPS USE ONLY
ENTRY NUMBER DATE
(Type all entrics — complete applicable sections)

[1. NAME
eommert - St. Francis Xavier Church and
Newtown _Manor llouse lljstoric Distriet |
AND/Oft HISTORIC:
L:_s_t_.m_‘l“rancis Xavier Roman Catholic Church & Newtown Manor House
|2. LOCATION
STREET ANC NUMBER:
llewtown HNeck, east sidc of Md. Rt. 243, 1.5 mi. south of Comotor
CITY OR TOWN:
Conpton
STATE . CODE |COUNTY: cope
1 __Maryland 24 St. Mary's 037
[3. CLASSIFICATION - :
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
v (Check One) OWNERSHIP STATUS TO THE PUBLIC
= :
| District ] Building |l Public Public Acquisitien: Oceupied Yes:
o 7] Site (7 Strueture |30 Private [ in Process ] Unoccupied [ Resnicted
i - [J Object {7} Both (7] Being Considered ] Preservation work 1 Unrestricted
| o - ’ in progress No
U PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate) '
pon 'R Agricultural {7] Government {7 Park {C] Tronsportation [} Comments
o ] Commercial [71 Industriai [B Private Residence {01 Other (Specity) e
- [[1 Educational L1 Military (3 Religious ————
A [7] Entertainment ("] Museum {71 Scientific —_— .
— |4 OWNER OF PROPERTY _
BWNLICS M AME: A . - . - -
- rchdiocese of Washington o
Contact: Patrick Cardinal A. O'Boyle oA
w STREET AND NUMBER: ST < n
[
w 1721 Rhode Island Avenue, N. W. v
w CITY OR TOWN: - STATE: coDE ;L
. R . >
_Washington Dist. of Columbia 1l
[5. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION ‘
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC: - - I
[+
itall of Records o<
STREET AND NUMBER: -z :
St. John's College Cawnus, College Avenue 5
CITY OR TOWN: STATE cooF |<
Annapolis Maryland 24 |
|6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS ,
TG O v v o T n
Maryland Register of historic sites and landmarks | a
— DWuTE OF SURVEY: ’ l) 71_--———— - [‘] AFodevol x! S'cﬂe -.'_)—.C.m:n-'y ~[» fT_:::l - ; g
DERPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RCCORULS: g %
Maryland liistorical Trust = e nlc
STRCET AND NGMBIHT - e
94 College Avenue o B L 2
CITY OF TOWN: STATE : cone —-~~—-4§
| Annapolis ...\ Maryland ____ __ . L N
"
]
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" [7. DESCRIPTION

. (Check One)
[ F-nlleni x] Good {7] Fair {7} Deteriorated {7] Ruins [T] Unexposed

CONDITION [ T - ‘[' (Check One)

N ((.ln v k Uuo)
[} Altered A Unaitered [71 Moved [ Original Site

OESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

St. Francis Xavier Church and Newtown Manor House
Historic District, supported by 700 acres of_ farmland one
hundred yards to the southeast, is located on Newtown Neck

. on the east side of Maryland Route 243, 1.5 mile south of

Compton, Maryland.

St. Francis Xavier Church is a frame, rectangular build-
ing with two octagonally-shaped brick additions: one on the
northwest (entrance); a second addition on the southeast
(altar). The southeast addition is broader than the main
body of the church and protrudes several inches beyond the
exterior walls of the main block of the church. This south-
east addition has three rectangular windows--each one in a
separate plane of the octagon. The end plane is a blank brick
wall with a brick chimney rising above the roof. On each
side of this chimney is a dormer window. There is a door in
the southeast octagon, the plane which is parallel to the
southwest wall of the main body of the church.

The roof over the altar is several inches higher than
the A-shaped nave roof which continues at the same level
and terminates at a cupola marking the apex of the roof of
the northwest octagon. This entrance is narrower than the
breadth of the church so that the nave protrudes several
feet from the place where the addition joins the main bodv.
This end is two stories and has rectangular windows on each
story on each visible exterior plane with the exception of the

door on the first story at the end plane. A sacristy and
confeSSLOnal are located inside. SR

The main body of the church has an intcrior barrel
vault ceiling supported by two scts of piers which credte
the nave and side aisles. There is a dome over the chancel
and altar which is located in the squtheast octagonal end.
The church has simple Federal woodwork and a mid-eighteenth-
century reredos.

Newtown Manor House, one hundred yards to the southeast
of the church, is a two-and-one-half story brick, five-bay
house with a pair of enclosed chimneys on each gable end.
The structure has an A roof with a jerkinhecad at each end.
There is a centrally placed porch on both the northeast and
southwest elevations. The house sits on a high brick base-
ment. There is a long one-story, shed~like structure along
the northwest gable end.

[

Newtown Manor House originally had a gambrel roof which

was raised and changed to its present shape in 1816.

SEE CONTINUATION SHERT ¥
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INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

SM-58 & SM-59

F. SIGNIFICANCE

PERICD (Check One or More as App.ropﬂntc)
(O] Pre-Columbion: ] 16th Century 18th Century 3 20th Century
] 15th Century ] 17th Century 19th Century

SPECIFIC DATE!S) (If Applicable andKnown) 1 766—-7 (church), c. 1740 (house);

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate) additions 1816 (both)

Abor iginel (] Edueation {1 Political ({1 Urban Plonning

] Prehistoric ] Engineering 8¢ Religion/ Phi. #1 Other (Specity)

O Historic [ Industry losophy . 17th century
{0 Agriculture (1) Invention [] Science Marvland hiStOrY
B Architecture {] Londscope (C] Sculpture
] Art Architecture {7) Seocial.’MHuman-

] Commerce O Literature itarian
[0 Communications 71 Military 1 Theater
(7] Conservation () Music ['1 Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

ARCHITECTURAL SIGNIFICANCE

The St. Francis Xavier Church building has a barrel
vault ceiling, unusual in a wood church. Architectural
evidence indicates this vaulting is original (1767). The _
two octagonally-shaped brick ends are unusual, if not unique,
features in Maryland ecclesiastical architecture.

HISTORICAL SIGNIFICANCE

St. Francis Xavier Church and Newtown Manor House !
Historic District marks a location and site important in the
seventeenth-century ecclesiastical history of Maryland. From
this area of Newtown Neck and from other locations in Southern
Maryland and the Eastern Shore, English Jesuit priests con-
ducted missionary activities among the Indians and ministered
to the needs of the settlers beginning in the 1630's and
1640's. In Maryland, as all over North America, the Jesuits
were the vanguard of western civilization in the wilderness.

The combination of St. Francis Xavier Church and Newtown
Manor House properties is an example of a self-contained
Jesuit community made self-supporting by the surrounding
700 acre farm. This type of community was prevalent in the
cighteenth century. 1In 1668 the Jesuits purchasecd the
Manor of Little Bretton, covering all of Newtown Neck. The
income from the farm supported the Jesuits and their
activities. The actual farm work was usually done by tenants

and overseers. This tradition has continued to the present
day. .

Jesuit activity at Newtown dates back to the 1640°'s.
In 1649 the mission in this locale became formally estab-
lished. The first church was erected in 1662 after a re-
laxation of the discrimination againfst Catholics which -
“accompanied the Restoration. The site of the 1662 church is
believed to be in St. Francis Xavier Cemetery, about one-
third mile to the north.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET W]
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{9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Recorders: Michael Bournc, Maryland llistorical Trust,
94 College Avenue, Annapolis, Maryland 21401; Nancv Miller,
Historian, Maryland listorical Trust.
Leitzell, Edwin %W., "A ilistory of St. Francis Xavier Roman
Catholic Church (0ld Newtown) The Manor of Little Rretton
St. Mary's County, Maryland." n. p., 1962, Files of the
Maryland Historical Trust.
v SLT. CONTINUATION SHEET
L10. GEOGRAPHICALDATA _ =
LATITUDE AMD LONGITUDE COORDINATES B TLATITUDE AND LONGITUDL COORDINAYI S
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE #ROVERTY o DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERYY
o Rb-- — ___OF LFSS THAN TFN ACRES
coRNER LAII_T—L_IDE . E_ONGHUDE LATITUDE LONGI TULT,
Degu-es Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW 38° 15+ 23~ 76° 42+ 05~ o ' . ° ] -
NE 38° 15 23 - 76° 41* 55-
SE 3ge° 15 15~ 76° 41°* 55-
SW J0e 15+ 15 - 760 42: 05-
APPROXIMATE ACRCAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: sixteen._ .(16_) acres. . __
LIST ALL STATES AND COUN TIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIFS
STATE: CODE | COUNTY cobt
- STaTE: CODE | COUNTY: conr
STATE: CODE | COUNTY: covE
STATE: CODE | COUNTY: COnE
1. FORM PREPARED BY T N i
NAME AND TITLE:
Mrs. Preston Parish, Keeper of the Maryland Register
ORGAMIZA TION - o DATE
Maryland Historical Trust Jan. 12, 1972
STREET AND NUMBER: T T T T R,
94 College Avcnue s
CITy OR TOwWN: sraTe cony
Annapolis Maryland s 124
f12. STATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICAIION NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION .
As the desipnated State Faaison Officer for the Na- . . o )
tional Historie Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Taw 1 hereeby cortify that this property is included in the
RO.665), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion National Register
in the Natienal Register and certify that it has been
evuluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended N " - - -
. . . Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Preservation
level of significance of this nmmnatvnon is: :
National [’} State l* l.ocal (7]
- , 3 k : A \ Dite
: ). ) ARV -
Nowme _ {_( (e (’J r.-\}_\l',ﬂe_'_l) —
- B N ATYVENT:
Orlando Ridout 1V .
rwe _Ctate Lialson Officer
- 1 - —_ e e
fOf Mar} lan(‘ Keeper of The National Register
tate January 13, 1972 | bDate
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Form 10.3000 UNITED STATES DF PARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
(July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Maryland

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES |counTy
St. Mary's
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM -

FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER DATE

(Continuation Sheet) :H\-‘

(Number all entries)

5t. Francis Xavicr Church & Newtown Manor llouse Ilistoric District

$7. DESCRIPTION continued

A fragment of a brick wall, located near the house, is
under archaeological investigation by the St. Mary's Countv
Archaeological Society.

#8. S1GNIFICANCE continued

llewtown flourished in the last decades of the seventeenth
century while it was the county seat as well as a rcligious
center. After 1695, when the county seat moved, the area
played a diminishing roll in the life of overall St. Mary's
County. The decline was culminated 'in 1868 when Leonardtown
became the residence of the Jesuit priests.

St. Francis Xavier Church, as a parish church, has con-
tinued since its origin in the mid-seventeenth century to
minister to the needs of local Roman Catholics.

Local tradition maintains that St. Francis Xavier Church
is the oldest Roman Catholic church building in the I'nalish
colonies. ey

In 1956 the church received the Haddock Chalice which
had belongecd to Janies lladdock, a resident of Newtown fror 1690
to about 1704. EKaddock had taken the small vessel with him
when he left; one of his descendants returned it. to the church.

Ly

W
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Form 10-3000 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
(July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES |[COUNTY
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM
FOR NPS USE ONLY
(Continuation Shect);&.z ENTRY MUMBER pATe
(Number sll entries)

St.

FFrancis Xavier Church & Newtown Manor Hous®e llistoric District
#9. REFERLICIES continued

Filtecau, Jerome. National Catholic News Service, U. S.
Catholic Conference, Washington, D. C., April 26, 1971.

One of a few Pennsylvania Roman Catholic Churches may
predate St. Francis Xavier as the oldest Catholic Church
in continuous existence in the thirteen English colonics.

St. Mary's County Land Records. Hall of Records, Annapolis,
Maryland.

Federal Direct Tax Assessment 1798. St. Marv's County. Hall
: of Records, Annapolis, Maryland.
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ST. FRANCIS XAVIER CHURCH IS THOUGHT YO BE
THE OLDEST CATHOLIC CHURCH IN CONTINUOUS
USE IN ENGLISH AMERICA. THE NAVE AND SANC-
TUARY ARE HOUSED IN A RECTANGULAR, SINGLE
STORY, WOOD-FRAME STRUCTURE BUILT IN 1776.
THE NAVE CEILING IS FORMED BY A CENTRAL
BARREL VAULT FLANKED BY TWO SMALLER
VAULTS AND INTERSECTED BY A HALF DOME
OVER THE ALTAR. SEMI-OCTAGONAL, TWO-
STORY BRICK APSES WERE ADDED AT EACH END
OF THE NAVE IN 1767. THE NORTHERN APSE
HOUSES THE VESTIBULE, WITH A CHOIR LOFT
AND BELL TOWER ABOVE. THE SOUTHERN
APSE CONTAINS THE SACRISTY, WITH A FINISHED
ATTIC ABOVE. IN 1974, DUE TO FOUNDATION
SETTLEMENT AND DETERIORATION OF THE
PLASTER VAULTS, SERVICES WERE MOVED 7O
THE ADJACENT PARISH HALL UNTIL FUNDS ARE
AVAILABLE FOR REPAIR. THE CONGREGATION

HOPES TO COMPLETELY RESTORE THE CHURCH.

ST. FRANCIS XAVIER CHURCH

I — NEWTOWN - ST. MARY'S COUNTY - MARYLAND

THIS PROJECT WAS UNDERTAKEN BY MEMBERS OF THE
GRADUATE COURSE “RESTORATION OF HISTORIC BUILD-
INGS" IN THE DEPARTMENT OF ARCHITECTURE AND
PLANNING, SCHOOL OF ENGINEERING AND ARCHITECTURE,
THE CATHOLIC UNIVERSITY OF AMERICA. FUNDING WAS
PROVIDED BY THE SCHOOL AND AN ANONYMOUS FACUL-
Ty MEMBER. AS A RESULT OF THIS EFFORT, PHOTO-
GRAPHS, HISTORICAL BACKROUND, REPAIR AND RESTO-
RATION INFORMATION, AND A LIST OF POSSIBLE FUNDING
SOURCES, AS WELL AS MEASURED DRAWINGS, WERE
PREPARED TO SERVE AS THE BASIS FOR THE COMPLETE
RESTORATION OF THE CHURCH. THOSE PARTICIPATING
IN THE PROJECT WERE: JAMES WOOD BURCH, FAIA
(LECTURER), ENIYE-MASON BRAIDE, JOHN CZARNECKI,
M. RESAT GECIT, MAHLON G.GUTHRIE, JAMES HANLEY,
PETER HELMES, STEPHEN JENKINS, PEDRO A. JUANPERE,
GARY J. KLACIK, ELIZABETH MARQUES, DANIEL E. MARTIN,
ANTONIO J. MATTA, KATSUHIKO MURAMOTO, ROBERT S,
OBENREDER, JEREM!AH J. REGAN, !SRAEL L. ROZENTAL,
AND STEPHEN A. SUTTON.

o
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ST. FRANGIS XAVIER CHURCH

ST MARY'S COUNTY MARYL_AND
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St. Francis Xavier Church
St. Mary's County, Maryland

Date: 1970 Sm-3@
Photographer: Michael Bourne
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